

Division of Medicaid State of Mississippi Provider Policy Manual	New: X Revised: X Current:	Date: 03/01/06 Date: 07/01/08
Section: HCBS-Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.02 Pages: 1 Cross Reference:	
Subject: Eligibility		

The Elderly and Disabled Waiver provides services to individuals age twenty-one (21) or older who, but for the provision of such services, would require placement in a nursing facility. It is a statewide program that allows qualified beneficiaries to remain in a home or community-based setting.

~~Eligibility requirements for the Elderly and Disabled Waiver Program include following:~~

- ~~• Beneficiary must be 21 years of age or older, **AND**~~
- ~~• Beneficiary must have a deficit in at least three (3) activities of daily living, **AND**~~
- ~~• Beneficiary must require nursing facility level of care, if assistance is not otherwise provided, **AND**~~
- Beneficiary must be aged, blind or disabled and currently qualify for Medicaid due to receipt of SSI cash assistance or qualify for Medicaid based on income that is under 300% of the SSI limit for an individual. Resources must be less than \$4,000.00.

Clinical eligibility for waiver services will be determined through the utilization of a comprehensive pre-admission screening tool which encompasses the following areas: activities of daily living, instrumental activities of daily living, sensory deficits, cognitive deficits, client behaviors, medical conditions, and medical services. Pre-admission screening data will be entered into a scoring algorithm which will generate a numerical score. The score will be compared to a set numerical threshold which determines eligibility. Those scores equal to or above the set numerical threshold will be deemed clinically eligible. Refer to Section 64, Long Term Care/Pre-Admission Screening (PAS), for additional information.

Nursing Home level of care must be certified by a physician. The level of care must be re-evaluated every twelve (12) months at a minimum.

Beneficiaries must be aged, blind or disabled and currently qualify for Medicaid due to receipt of SSI cash assistance or qualify for Medicaid based on income that is under 300% of the SSI limit for an individual.

Beneficiaries enrolled in the Elderly & Disabled Waiver are prohibited from receiving additional Medicaid services through hospice, nursing facility, and/or another waiver program.

Division of Medicaid State of Mississippi Provider Policy Manual	New: X Revised: X Current:	Date: 03/01/06 Date: 07/01/08
Section: HCBS-Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.03	
Subject: Provider Enrollment	Pages: 1 6 Cross Reference:	

Providers interested in becoming providers of Elderly and Disabled Waiver services must complete a proposal package and enter into a provider agreement with the Division of Medicaid. Providers interested in becoming a provider of Adult Day Care Services must also undergo a facility inspection.

Proposal Packet

A proposal packet may be obtained ~~through~~ from the Division of Medicaid; HCBS ~~section~~ Division of the Bureau of Long Term Care. Upon completion, the proposal packet must be **mailed** back to the Division of Medicaid, HCBS ~~section~~ Division of the Bureau of Long Term Care. DOM HCBS staff will review the proposal.

Adult Day Care Services Facility Inspection

Upon completion of the proposal packet for Adult Day Care Services, DOM HCBS staff will inspect the facility to ensure that the facility meets the waiver ~~quality assurance standards~~ services specifications.

Mississippi Medicaid Provider Application

When all requirements ~~noted above~~ have been satisfied, DOM HCBS staff will mail a Mississippi Medicaid Provider Application. The completed application must be **mailed** back to the Division of Medicaid, HCBS ~~section~~ Division of the Bureau of Long Term Care. DOM HCBS staff will review the application. If approved, the application will be forwarded to the Bureau of Provider/Beneficiary Relations for approval. When all approvals have been obtained, the application will be sent to the fiscal agent.

Upon notification that a provider number has been issued, DOM HCBS staff will send a welcome letter to the new provider. The appropriate case manager will be notified to add the provider to the referral list.

Providers may not submit the proposal or the enrollment application for waiver services electronically.

Provider Qualifications: Adult Day Care, Homemaker Services, and In-Home Respite

Adult Day Care

Adult day care services must be provided by an established, qualified facility/agency. It is not appropriate for an individual to apply for a DOM provider number for the sole purpose of providing care to friends/family members.

Each adult day care service must meet the following requirements:

- The facility must be compliant with applicable state and local building restrictions as well as all zoning, fire, and health codes/ordinances.
- The facility must meet the requirements of the American Disabilities Act of 1990.

- The facility must have a governing body with full legal authority and judiciary responsibility for the overall operation of the program in accordance with applicable state and federal requirements.
- The facility must have an advisory committee, and the committee must be representative of the community and participant population.
- The facility must have a written plan of operation that is reviewed, approved, and revised as needed by the governing board.
- The facility must have a qualified administrator (chief executive officer or president) responsible for the development, coordination, supervision, fiscal management, and evaluation of services provided through the adult day care services program. The administrator must have master's degree and one (1) year supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent) in a social or health service setting; or a bachelor's degree and three (3) years supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent) in a social or health service setting; or comparable technical and human service training with demonstrated competence and experience as a manager in a health or human service setting.
- The facility must have a program director (center manager, site manager, center coordinator) responsible for the organization, implementation, and coordination of the daily operation of the adult day care services program in accordance with the participant's needs and any mandatory requirements. The program director must have a bachelor's degree in health, social services, or a related field and one (1) year supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent) or comparable technical and human services training with demonstrated competence and experience as a manager in a health or human services setting. The program director must be under the direction of the administrator.
- The facility must have a qualified social service staff person. The staff person must have a master's degree in social work and at least one (1) year of professional work experience (full-time or equivalent) in a human services setting; or a bachelor's degree in social work and two (2) years of professional work experience (full-time or equivalent) in a human services setting; or a bachelor's degree in a health or social services related field and two (2) years experience (full-time or equivalent) in a human services field. Social Workers must comply with all licensure requirements set by the Mississippi State Board of Examiners for Social Workers and Marriage & Family Therapists. In lieu of a licensed social worker, the functions may be carried out by other health service professionals such as certified rehabilitation counselors, licensed gerontologists, licensed professional counselors, or licensed/certified mental health workers.
- If the facility offers nursing services, there must be a registered nurse (RN). The RN must have a valid state license and a minimum of one (1) year applicable experience (full-time or equivalent). It is preferable for the RN to have a bachelor's degree, that all or part of the RN's experience has been in a community setting, and that the RN's experience has involved working with the aging adults and adults with chronic impairments.
- The facility must have an activities coordinator. The coordinator must have a bachelor's degree and at least one (1) year of experience (full-time or equivalent) in developing and conducting activities for the type population to be served or an associate's degree in a related field and at least two (2) years of appropriate experience (full-time or equivalent). An educational degree with a major in recreation, occupational therapy, arts, humanities, social services or health services is preferred. Experience that includes therapeutic recreation for older adults and those with disabilities is preferred.

-
-
- The facility must have a program assistant. The assistant must have a high school diploma or the equivalent and at least one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) in working with adults in a health care or social service setting. The program assistant must receive training in working with older adults and conducting activities for the population served. Responsibilities of the program assistant should include providing personal care assistance to participants and working with other staff as required for the implementation of services/activities. The program assistant may assist with transporting and escorting participants to, from, and within the facility.
 - If the facility prepares food on site, there must be a food service director. The food service director must be a registered dietician (RD), dietetic technician registered (DTR), RD eligible, DTR eligible, or a four (4) year graduate of a baccalaureate program in nutrition/dietetics/food service. In addition, the food service director must have a minimum of one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) in working with adults in a health care or social service setting. **If the food is not prepared on site, the facility must contract with a reputable food service provider/caterer.**
 - The facility must have a secretary/bookkeeper. The secretary/bookkeeper must at a minimum have a high school diploma or equivalent and the skills and training to carry out the responsibilities of the position. A bachelor's degree in accounting or high school diploma with five (5) years experience (full-time or equivalent) in accounting is preferred.
 - The facility must have a driver. The driver must have a valid state driver license, a safe driving record, and training in first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR). The driver must maintain compliance with all state requirements for licensure/certification. The driver should be aware of basic transfer techniques and safe ambulation. Experience in assisting older adults and adults with impairments are preferred. Successful completion of a defensive driving course, training in sensitivity to the needs of older adults, and passenger assistance training is preferred. If qualified, the driver may also serve as the program assistant.
 - If the facility uses volunteers there must be a record of the volunteer's hours and activities. Volunteers must be individuals or groups who desire to work with adult day service participants. Volunteers must successfully complete an orientation/training program. The responsibilities of volunteers must be mutually determined by the volunteers and staff. Duties must be performed under the supervision of facility staff members. Duties should either supplement staff in established activities or provide additional services for which the volunteer has special talent/training. **The facility may not use volunteers in place of required staff and should use volunteers only on a periodic/temporary basis.**

Homemaker Services

DOM requires that an agency seeking approval as a Medicaid Home and Community-Based Waiver provider for the Elderly & Disabled Waiver be established and in business for a minimum of one (1) year. It is not appropriate for an individual to apply for a DOM provider number for the sole purpose of providing care to friends/family members.

To be approved/certified by DOM as a provider of homemaker services, the agency must provide written documentation of the following:

- DOM provider agreement that includes the agency's agreement to the waiver requirements
- Governing structure for assuring responsibility and for requiring accountability for performance

-
-
- Fiscal management
 - Personnel Management including personnel policies, job descriptions, and the process for recruitment, selection, retention and termination of homemakers
 - Roster of qualified homemaker staff
 - Criteria/procedure for the provision of services including procedures for dealing with emergency service requests

Each homemaker agency must have qualified homemakers and supervisors.

- Homemaker supervisor

The homemaker supervisor must have a bachelor's degree in social work, home economics, or a related field and at least one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) working directly with aged and disabled individuals; or licensure as a registered nurse (RN) or licensed practical nurse (LPN) and one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) working directly with aged and disabled individuals; or a high school diploma and four (4) years experience (full-time or equivalent) working with aged and disabled individuals. In addition, all homemaker supervisors must have at least two (2) years supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent) preferably in a setting with aged and disabled individuals.

The homemaker supervisor may not supervise more than twenty (20) full-time homemakers. Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

- Making home visits with the homemaker to observe and evaluate job performance
- Submitting supervisor reports and monthly activity sheets
- Reviewing/approving service plans
- Processing requests for service
- Interpreting agency policy and procedure, maintaining appropriate records and reports
- Planning and documenting in-service training for homemaker staff
- Maintaining accessibility to homemakers for emergencies, case reviews, conferences, and problem solving.

The homemaker supervisor must report directly to the agency director.

- Homemakers

Requirements for homemakers are as follows:

- Eighteen (18) years of age or older
- High school diploma, General Educational Development (GED) Test, or must demonstrate the ability to read the written homemaker assignment and write well enough to complete required forms and reports

-
-
- Successful completion and passing score on a forty (40) hour Homemaker Curriculum Training Course or the equivalent (e.g., Certified Nursing Assistant)
 - Valid Mississippi driver license and access to reliable transportation
 - Ability to function independently without constant supervision/observation
 - Physical ability to perform tasks required
 - Absence of communicable diseases as verified by a physician
 - Interest in, and empathy for, individuals who are ill, elderly, and/or disabled
 - Emotional maturity and ability to respond to individuals and situations in a responsible manner
 - Good communication and interpersonal skills; ability to deal effectively, assertively and cooperatively with a variety of people
 - Absence of any criminal convictions related to violent crime and/or crime substantially related to the dependent population

Experience in caring for aged and disabled individuals is preferable but not required.

In-Home Respite

DOM requires that an agency seeking approval as a Medicaid Home and Community-Based Waiver provider for the Elderly & Disabled Waiver be established and in business for a minimum of one (1) year. It is not appropriate for an individual to apply for a DOM provider number for the sole purpose of providing care to friends/family members.

DOM requires all providers of in-home respite services to submit written policies and procedures, hiring practices, and general business plan detailing the delivery of services prior to entering into a provider agreement.

Each in-home respite agency must have a qualified in-home respite providers and supervisors.

- In-home respite provider supervisor

The in-home respite supervisor must meet the following requirements; bachelor's degree in social work or related profession, at least one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) working with aged and disable clients, and two (2) years supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent); or licensure as a RN or LPN, one (1) year experience (full-time or equivalent) working directly with aged and disabled individuals, and two (2) years supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent) ; or a high school diploma, four (4) years experience (full-time or equivalent) working directly with aged and disabled individuals, and two (2) years supervisory experience (full-time or equivalent).

- In-home respite provider

Requirements for in-home respite providers are as follows:

-
-
- Eighteen (18) years of age or older
 - High school diploma/GED, and at least for (4) years (full-time or equivalent) experience as a direct care provider to the aged or disabled
 - Certification in CPR and first aid
 - Valid Mississippi driver license and access to reliable transportation
 - Ability to function independently without constant supervision/observation
 - Physical ability to perform tasks required
 - Ability to recognize signs of abuse, neglect, and/or exploitation; ability to follow procedures required in the Vulnerable Adult Act
 - Knowledge of how to prevent burns, falls, and fires; knowledge of emergency numbers for contacting emergency personnel if required
 - Absence of communicable diseases as verified by a physician
 - Interest in, and empathy for, individuals who are ill, elderly, and/or disabled
 - Emotional maturity and ability to respond to individuals and situations in a responsible manner
 - Good communication and interpersonal skills; ability to deal effectively, assertively and cooperatively with a variety of people
 - Absence of any criminal convictions related to violent crime and/or crime substantially related to the dependent population

Division of Medicaid State of Mississippi Provider Policy Manual	New: X Revised: X Current:	Date: 03/01/06 Date: 07/01/08
Section: HCBS-Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.04 Pages: 1 Cross Reference:	
Subject: Freedom of Choice		

Medicaid beneficiaries have the right to freedom of choice of providers for Medicaid covered services. Section 1902(a) (23) of the Social Security Act provides that "any individual eligible for medical assistance (including drugs) may obtain such assistance from any institution, agency, community pharmacy, or person qualified to perform the service or services required."

Elderly and Disabled Waiver program will not restrict a beneficiary's freedom to choose providers. During the initial enrollment period and upon annual recertification, the beneficiary will be provided with a list of participating waiver providers, and the beneficiary may select the providers they want to deliver services. ~~The beneficiary has the right to modify or cancel services at anytime with the prior approval of the case manager. After services have been initiated, the beneficiary may at any time request/discuss a change in services with the case manager.~~

~~When Medicaid waiver beneficiary selects a company that is owned and/or operated by a family member, the services may be delivered by an employee who is a family member provided the following conditions are met:~~

- ~~◆ The employee (family member) has completed the normal and expected course of training, and~~
- ~~◆ The agency maintains employment records for the employee (family member).~~

~~**Exception: a family member providing waiver services must be someone not normally considered a caregiver. For example, an adult child may not provide waiver services to a parent.**~~

When the service amounts, frequencies, duration, and scope are reduced, denied, or terminated, the beneficiary will be provided written notice of recourse/appeal procedures within ten (10) calendar days of the effective reduction, termination, or denial of services as specified in Section 65.12, Due Process Protection.

Division of Medicaid State of Mississippi Provider Policy Manual	New: Revised: X Current:	Date: Date: 10/01/07 07/01/08
Section: HCBS/Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.07	
Subject: Covered Services	Pages: 5	
	Cross Reference: Home Health 40.0	

The following services are provided through the Elderly and Disabled Waiver:

- Case Management
- Homemaker
- Adult Day Care
- Institutional or In-Home Respite
- Home Delivered Meals
- Escorted Transportation
- ~~Expanded~~ Extended Home Health Visits
- Transition Assistance

Providers must meet all provider specifications for the respective service as outlined in the CMS approved waiver.

Beneficiaries who choose to reside in a licensed/unlicensed Personal Care Home may not receive personal care services through the waiver.

Case Management

Case management services assist beneficiaries in accessing needed waiver and other State Plan services, as well as needed medical, social, educational, and other services, regardless of the funding source for the services. Case management services for the E&D Waiver program are provided through the Mississippi Planning and Development Districts/Area Agencies on Aging (PDD/AAA). Each PDD/AAA providing case management services must be approved by the Division of Medicaid and must enter into a provider agreement.

Case management services are rendered by teams. Each team is composed of two (2) case managers. One case manager is a Registered Nurse and the other is a Licensed Social Worker. Each team must have an assigned case management supervisor. The case management supervisor should not carry an active caseload of clients.

A case management team comprised of a registered nurse and a social worker will should maintain a an average caseload of no more than 50 beneficiaries one hundred (100) active cases with up to five (5) cases pending approval by DOM. ~~The team of a registered nurse and social worker should maintain a caseload of no more than 100 beneficiaries.~~ Priority will be given to beneficiaries electing to transition from nursing home to a home/community-based setting. If a case manager leaves a team, the remaining case manager will become a single CM team until the vacant position is filled. The remaining case manager will continue to maintain the caseload. Beneficiaries should not be discharged down to 50 nor should new beneficiaries be added until the team member is replaced. Any exceptions must be approved by DOM. The Case Management Supervisor ~~should~~ must document all efforts made to find/hire a new

team member.

If a team has a social worker and a nurse, **both** are expected to make each visit. If one member is out on a prolonged leave/absence, the other team member may conduct the monthly visits, quarterly visits, readmits, and recertification visits alone. Single (one member) case management teams may also conduct monthly visits, quarterly visits, readmits, and recertification visits alone.

~~Initial assessments and/or recertification performed by a single member of the team must be reviewed, approved, signed and dated by the case management supervisor on the bottom of the last page of the assessment. The case management supervisor should write "reviewed and approved" before signing and dating the form. If the documentation by the case manager is inaccurate, incomplete, or otherwise does not meet the supervisor's approval, the case management supervisor must immediately take appropriate corrective action to obtain the quality of documentation necessary to sustain approval. A copy of the unapproved documentation should be kept in a separate record.~~

Homemaker Services

Homemaker services are supportive services provided or accomplished primarily in the home by a trained homemaker. Services include education and/or provision of home management tasks to assist in strengthening family life, promoting self-sufficiency, and enhancing quality of life.

The purpose of homemaker services is to assist functionally impaired persons to remain in their home by providing assistance in the activities of daily living, housekeeping, laundry, meal planning, marketing, food preparation, and other types of home management tasks to prevent the risk of institutionalization.

Homemaker and home health aides must not perform the same services at the same time. (Example: both the homemaker and home health aide cannot give the beneficiary a bath or make the beneficiary's bed and then bill for the service. **It is recommended that the homemaker and home health aide not be in the client's home at the same time, and that they perform separate duties. If an extenuating circumstance occurs and scheduling cannot be worked out, this circumstance should be thoroughly documented.**

Adult Day Care Services

Adult Day Care is a structured, comprehensive program which provides a variety of health, social and related supportive services in a ~~protected~~ protective setting during daytime and early evening hours. This community-based service is designed to meet the needs of aged and disabled beneficiaries through an individualized care plan that includes the following:

- Personal care and supervision
- Provision of meals as long as meals do not constitute a full nutritional regimen
- Provision of limited health care
- Transportation to and from the site (cost is included in the rate paid to providers)
- Social, health, and recreational activities

Adult Day Care activities must be included in the plan of care, must be related to specific, verifiable, and achievable long and short-term goals/objectives, and must be monitored by the beneficiary's assigned case manager. ~~Activities that are diversionary in nature are not allowed.~~

~~The beneficiary must be at the facility at least four (4) hours per day (but may stay longer if decided), but less than (24) hours per day for Medicaid reimbursement.~~
To receive Medicaid reimbursement the beneficiary must receive a minimum of four (4) hours, but less than twenty-four (24) hours, of services per day.

Institutional or In-Home Respite Services

~~Respite Care provides assistance to beneficiaries unable to care for themselves. Care is furnished on a short-term basis because of the absence of, or the need to provide relief to, the primary caregiver(s). Respite service is non-medical care and supervision is provided to the beneficiary in the absence of the beneficiary's primary full-time, live-in caregiver(s) on a short-term basis. Services are provided to assist the caregiver(s) during a crisis situation and/or scheduled relief to the primary caregiver(s) to prevent, delay or avoid premature institutionalization of the beneficiary.~~

1. Institutional Respite Services

Institutional respite may only be provided in Title XIX hospitals, nursing facilities, and licensed swing bed facilities. Providers must meet all certification and licensure requirements applicable to the type of respite service provided, and must obtain a separate provider number specifically for this service.

Eligible beneficiaries may receive no more than thirty (30) calendar days of institutional respite care per fiscal year.

2. In-Home Respite Services

In-Home Respite services are provided to beneficiaries unable to care for themselves. Criteria for in-home respite services include **all** of the following:

- Beneficiary must be home-bound due to physical or mental impairments, **and**
- Beneficiary must require twenty-four (24) hour assistance by the caregiver, i.e., cannot be left alone/unattended for any period of time, **and**
- ~~Caregiver must live in the home and document that the beneficiary has no other family member who is able to assist.~~

In-Home Respite services are limited to no more than ~~forty (40)~~ sixty (60) hours per month. Respite services in excess of sixteen (16) continuous hours must be prior approved by the case management team.

Home Delivered Meals

Home Delivered Meals are nutritionally balanced meals delivered to the home of a beneficiary who is unable to leave home without assistance and/or ~~is unable to prepare meals~~ has no responsible caregiver in the home. All eligible beneficiaries may receive a minimum of one (1) meal per day, five (5) days per week. If there is no responsible caregiver to prepare meals, the beneficiary may qualify to receive a maximum of one (1) meal per day, seven (7) days per week.

Home Delivered Meals services are not provided by individual providers. The Area Agencies on Aging provide the services through a contractual agreement with the Division of Medicaid.

Escorted Transportation

~~Escorted Transportation is provided when the State Plan Non-Emergency Transportation is either not available or inadequate to accommodate the needs of the E&D Waiver beneficiary. Whenever possible, family, neighbors, friends, or community agencies will be utilized in lieu of Escorted Transportation.~~

Escorted transportation is a service offered to the frail population served in the E&D Waiver. These services are offered in addition to medical transportation required under 42 CFR 431.53 and transportation services offered under the State Plan, defined in 42 CFR 440.170 (a) (if applicable). Escorted transportation is provided when the State Plan non-emergency transportation is either not available or inadequate to accommodate the needs of the beneficiary. Whenever possible, family, friends, or community agencies will be utilized in lieu of escorted transportation. In no case will family members be reimbursed for the provision of escorted transportation under this waiver. Escorted transportation may be used for trips to doctors' appointments and trips to the pharmacy to pick up medications. The escorted transportation provider is expected to assist the beneficiary into and out of their home, to the vehicle safely, into the doctor's office/pharmacy, remain with the beneficiary throughout the time they are in the doctor's office/pharmacy, and assist them back to the vehicle. The escorted transportation provider may not at any time use the beneficiary's personal vehicle to provide services. Escorted Transportation must be prior approved and arranged by the beneficiary's waiver case manager.

Providers must maintain documentation that includes, at a minimum, the date of services, time of departure from the beneficiary's residence, time of arrival at the destination, number of miles traveled to the destination, time of departure from the location, and time of arrival back at beneficiary's residence. Documentation must be signed and dated by both the provider and the beneficiary.

Expanded Extended Home Health Services

Beneficiaries may receive twenty-five (25) home health visits each fiscal year through the regular Medicaid program. ~~Services must be pre-certified.~~ Through the Elderly and Disabled Waiver, beneficiaries may receive additional home health visits after the initial twenty-five (25) have been exhausted, **but only with prior approval of the DOM HCBS Program Nurse.**

Home Health Agencies must follow all rules and regulations set forth in Section 40 of this manual. The word "waiver" does not apply to anything other than Home Health visits with prior approval of the **DOM HCBS Program Nurse.** The Elderly and Disabled Waiver allows for extended state plan home health services **only after the twenty-five (25) 25** visits allowed under the state plan have been exhausted. Waiver beneficiaries are subject to home health co-payment requirements through the 25th visit. Starting with the 26th home health visit, within the state fiscal year, the Waiver beneficiary is exempt from home health co-payment requirements.

Providers must be certified to participate as a home health agency under Title XVIII (Medicare) of the Social Security Act, furnish the Division of Medicaid (DOM) with a copy of its certification and/or recertification, meet all applicable state and federal laws and regulations, provide DOM with a copy of its certificate of need approval when applicable, and execute a participation agreement with DOM.

Homemaker and home health aides must not perform the same services at the same time. (Example: both the homemaker and home health aide cannot give the beneficiary's bath or make the beneficiary's bed and then bill for the service. **It is recommended that the homemaker and home health aide not be in the client's home at the same time, and that they perform separate duties. Exceptions must be approved by DOM.** If an extenuating circumstance occurs and scheduling cannot be worked out, this circumstance should be thoroughly documented.

Transition Assistance

Transition Assistance services are services provided to a beneficiary currently residing in a nursing facility who wishes to transition from the nursing facility to the Elderly and Disabled Waiver program. Transition Assistance is a one-time initial expense required for setting up a household. The expenses must be included in the approved plan of care. **Transition Assistance Services are capped at \$800.00 one-time initial expense per lifetime.**

1. Eligibility

To be eligible for Transition Services the beneficiary must meet **all** of the following criteria:

- Beneficiary must be a nursing facility resident whose nursing facility services are paid for by DOM, **and**
- Beneficiary must have no other source to fund or attain the necessary items/support, **and**
- Beneficiary must be moving from a nursing facility where these items/services were provided, **and**
- Beneficiary must be moving to a residence where these items/services are not normally furnished

2. Services

Transition Assistance Services include the following:

- Security deposits required to obtain a lease on an apartment or home
- Essential furnishings such as bed, table, chairs, window blinds, eating utensils, and food preparation items (Items such as televisions, cable TV access or VCR's are not considered furnishings)
- Moving expenses
- Fees/deposits for utilities or service access such as telephone, electricity, etc.
- Health and safety assurances such as pest eradication, allergen control, or one-time cleaning prior to occupancy

All transition services must be essential to (1) ensuring that the individual is able to transition from the current nursing facility, and (2) removing an identified barrier or risk to the success of the transition to a more independent living situation.

3. Exclusions

Transition Assistance is not available for beneficiaries whose stay in a nursing facility is ninety (90) 90 days or less.

Division of Medicaid	New: -X	Date: -03/01/06
State of Mississippi	Revised: X	Date: 07/01/08
Provider Policy Manual	Current:	
Section: HCBS/Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.08	
	Pages: 1	
Subject: Quality Assurance Standards Management	Cross Reference:	

Waiver providers must meet applicable quality assurance standards, service specifications. ~~The standards are part of as referenced in the waiver document approved by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services. DOM HCBS staff will send a copy of the Quality Assurance Standards to the prospective waiver provider upon receipt of the proposal packet /enrollment application. In addition, DOM HCBS staff will notify waiver providers when revisions are made to the standards. Providers are issued a copy of the CMS approved waiver requirements for their respective service(s) and providers are notified when revisions are made.~~

~~Waiver~~ Providers are required to report changes in contact information, staffing, and licensure within ten (10) calendar days to DOM HCBS staff. ~~DOM HCBS staff will contact waiver providers annually to verify/update information and to ensure that all services are being provided.~~

The quality management strategy for the waiver includes the following:

- Level of care need determination consistent with the need for institutionalization
- Plan of care consistent with the beneficiary's needs
- Providers who meet the provider specifications of the CMS approved waiver, including licensure/certification requirements
- Critical event/incident reporting mechanism for beneficiaries and caregivers (for reporting concerns/incidents of abuse, neglect, and exploitation)
- State (DOM) retention of administrative authority over the waiver program
- State (DOM) financial accountability for the waiver program

Only DOM can initiate, in writing, any interpretation or exception to Medicaid rules, regulations, or policies.

Division of Medicaid	New: X	Date: -03/01/06
State of Mississippi	Revised: X	Date: 07/01/08
Provider Policy Manual	Current:	
Section: HCBS-Elderly & Disabled Waiver	Section: 65.09	
	Pages: 1	
Subject: Documentation/Record Maintenance	Cross Reference:	

All providers participating in the Medicaid program are required to maintain legible, accurate, and complete records that disclose and justify the services rendered and billed under the program and upon request, make these records available to representatives of DOM in substantiation of any and all claims. These records must be maintained a minimum of five (5) years to comply with all state and federal regulations and laws. Statistical and financial data supporting a cost report must be maintained for at least five (5) years from the date the cost report (or amended cost report, or appeal) is submitted to DOM.

Documentation/record maintenance for reimbursement purposes must, at a minimum, reflect ~~procedures requirements~~ set forth for ~~applicable waiver Quality Assurance Standards in the waiver~~. In addition, waiver providers are required to submit copies of all service logs/documentation of visits, along with a copy of their billing for each waiver beneficiary served, to the individual's case manager no later than the 15th of the following month in which the service was rendered. The case manager may make an initial verbal request for missing documentation and billing verification from the waiver provider, allowing ten (10) working days for the information to be received. If the information is not provided within the allotted time, the case manager or case management supervisor may make a second verbal request allowing an additional ten (10) working days for the information to be received. If the information is still not received, the third request **must** be made by the case management supervisor in writing and copied to the HCBS Division Director. The written request should reference the dates that the first and second requests were made and the name of the person to whom the request was made. An additional ten (10) days must be allowed for the provider to submit the required missing documentation. The letter should indicate that no further referrals will be made to the provider until all required documentation is received. If the information is still not received, the HCBS Division Director will determine appropriate action.

If the provider's records do not substantiate services paid for under the Mississippi Medicaid program, as previously noted, the provider will be asked to refund to DOM any money received from the Medicaid program for any such non-substantiated services. If a refund is not received within thirty (30) days, a sum equal to the amount paid for such services will be deducted from any future payments that are deemed to be due the provider.

A provider who knowingly or willfully makes, or causes to be made, a false statement or representation of a material fact in any application for Medicaid benefits or Medicaid payments may be prosecuted under federal and state criminal laws. A false attestation can result in civil monetary penalties, as well as fines, and may automatically disqualify the provider as a provider of Medicaid services.